CHARLES ROBERTS HOUSE

34 COURT PLACE

The Roberts-Wood-Adams House is significant in Westminster
as a superb building in its own right, and as a key element in that
City's Court Square. Although there is evidence to suggest that a
building occupied this site as early as 1830, the present structure
dates from a generation later. Charles Roberts bought a part of
this large lot from Lydia Kelly on August 2, 1875 for $500.00 (Carroll
County Deed Book 45, Page 387.) Roberts apparently owned other
land in the area extending to the rear of the Ascension Church. He
was a prominent lawyer and later judge of the Circuit Court and was
active in several local organizations such as the Union National Bank,
and the Forest and Stream Club, as well as having been instrumental in
the Telephone Company's early history here.

It was no doubt Roberts who either built the entire present
structure, or who expanded the older building into the present form.
Whichever he did, the result was superb as his house was, and to
some degree still is, thought of as a local "showpiece'. To achieve
his effect, he abandoned the axial quality of most of the City's
early dwellings, placing his entrance door to one side. He also
abandoned the City's fondness for the gable roof, installing a mansard
roof, and thus following fashions of the Great World rather than the
dictates of the local vernacular tradition. In doing so, Roberts was
the first, along with the Reifsnider family, to attempt to introduce
cosmopolitan elements into the City's building pattern. Charles
Reifsnider was at about the same time, erecting his second empire
pile on the corner of Main and Ralph Streets in Westminster; Roberts
must have been following similar fashions, for his efforts here include
not only a mansard roof, but a very fine pavilion at the southern
corner of his house. Interior details are equally fine, including
elaborately wrought radiators, swirling cast brass hardware (including,
hinges) and a warming oven built into the dining room radiator. Equally
fine interior woodwork exists, at least on the first two stories. The
23 rooms in the house are extremely irregularly laid out, but many
still have the fine mid-Victorian fireplaces.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This fanciful pile, originally a home of Judge Roberts,
faces the east side of Court Square in Westminster. Although the
building presents one of the liveliest facades anywhere in the City,
it can conveniently be broken in half, each half of which is manageable.
The southern section, no. 39-41, is a five-bay, white-painted, flemish
bond, brick pile. This facade is two full stories in height, plus a
mansard roof. The main door in this section, and of the whole building,
is the northern ground floor bay. The door opening is in the form of
a round arch with four enriched recessed panels in it. The door is
double, and rests above three granite steps. Plain spandrels enliven the
area between the arch and the full pediment which tops it. Scrolled
brackets with acanthus leaves at their bases, ''support' the pediment.
There is another secondary door which is the second bay from the south.
It is, correctly, plainer and is a single door with two enriched panels
below a rectangular transom--a plain bracketed cornice tops the transom.
This door led to Dr. Adams' office.

All other bays on this facade's section are 6/6 double-hung
sash windows with black louvered shutters and white wooden sills and
three course gauged flat arches. Windows are regularly spaced; there
are three of them on the ground floor and five above. An extremely
heavy-molded cornice tops the facade separating it from the mansard
roof. The cornice is enriched by massive dentils placed between the
six intricate scroll brackets which are, in turn, placed alternately
with the windows; a string course commects these brackets at their
bases. The mansard roof has three round arched dormer windows with
segmental arched wooden hoods; the hoods are supported by mild
pelleted scrolled brackets. A fine pavilion marks the end of the
roof on the south side; it has a double set of round arched 1/1 windows,
both placed below their larger version of the other dormer windows'
hoods. The pavilion is topped, above two quatrefoil decorated recessed
circles, by a small crown molding. The entire roof is still sheathed in
its original grey slate.

The other section of the building acts as a foil to this
larger section. The larger section is calmer except where it is
enlivened by means of rounded shapes. This other section, added as a
ballroom, however, is lively and much liveliness is a result of the
extremely steeply-pitched gable roof which more than balances the already
discussed pavilion. This roof continues, after a fashion, the cornice
and brackets and dentils of the other section but at an acute angular
mammer. A pair of 6/6 windows is placed within the dormer. Most of the
rest of this facade is taken up by a three-sided, two-story bay window.
Each story has one round-arched bay per side, all being 1/1 windows
except for a ground-story entrance door. This door, largely of glass, is

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Roberts-Wood-Adams House is significant in Westminster
as a superb building in its own right, and as a key element in that
City's Court Square. Although there is evidence to suggest that a
building occupied this site as early as 1830, the present structure
dates from a generation later. Charles Roberts bought a part of
this large lot from Lydia Kelly on August 2, 1875 for $500.00 (Carroll
County Deed Book 45, Page 387.) Roberts apparently owned other land
in the area extending to the rear of the Ascension Church. He was
a prominent lawyer and later judge of the Circuit Court and was active
in several local organizations such as the Union National Bank, and
the Forest and Stream Club, as well as having been instrumental in
the Telephone Company's early history here.

It was no doubt Roberts who either built the entire present
structure, or who expanded the older building into the present form,
Whichever he did, the result was superb as his house was, and to
some degree still is, thought of as a local ''showpiece''. To achieve
his effect, he abandoned the axial quality of most of the City's
early dwellings, placing his entrance door to one side. He also
abandoned the City's fondness for the gable roof, installing a mansard
roof, and thus following fashions of the Great World rather than the
dictates of the local vernacular tradition. In doing so, Roberts was
the first, along with the Reifsnider family, to attempt to introduce
cosmopolitan elements into the City's building pattern. Charles
Reifsnider was at about the same time, erecting his second empire
pile on the corner of Main and Ralph Streets in Westminster; Roberts
must have been following similar fashions, for his efforts here include
not only a mansard roof, but a very fine pavilion at the southern
corner of his house. Interior details are equally fine, including
elaborately wrought radiators, swirling cast brass hardware (including
hinges) and a warming oven built into the dining room radiator. Equally
fine interior woodwork exists, at least on the first two stories. The
23 rooms in the house are extremely irregularly laid out, but many
still have the fine mid-Victorian fireplaces.

Court Square possesses an atmosphere of often-mentioned

serenity. While this is true, it is a serenity not based on unified
design of buildings, but on buildings that blend together well despite

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Being the parcels number 2, 3 and 4 as shown on the plat
accorded among the land records of Carroll County in Book 142, Page
515, measuring approximately 56 feet along the eastern side of Court
Square in Westminster and with a depth of about 257 feet.

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY T
E81FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
Christopher Weeks, Consultant August 1977
ORGANIZATION DATE
Westminster Historical Sites Survey :
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
c/o City Hall - Public Works Department
CiTY OR TOWN STATE
Westminster Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section'181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

PS- 1108



v 7\
CARR-466

a recent addition. The ton of each of the gahles of the dormer's two
stories is marked by a delicately dentiled cornice. Acanthus-leafed
brackets are nlaced about this cornice. Elongated slender turned
columns are nlaced flush with the wall between all brackets on the
bay window. The north side of this peaked-roof section has recently
had a flat-roofed, two-story, clanboard, one-bay extension off of it
for offices. The extension runs the depth of the original structure
below the roof which is nierced by two pediment dormer windows in

the ?ttic. The five-bay section is one room deep; its south wall

is blind.

The rear of the building, which has a T shape, has had much
recent work done on it. and is now covered in a massive series of
aluminum siding additions which are alternately covered with casement
windows and iron fire escapes. The rear of the extremely steened-roof
section is covered with a two-story, screened-in porch. A}l in all
the confused jumble of the rear, recess to contain the houses 23 rooms, is
a marked contrast to the otherwise unified placid nrincipal facade and
betrays the building's many uses today as well as the bold princinal
facade represents the building's unified, dignified past.
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there differences in design. Some houses alona the Square's eastern side
are traditional, but these are a minoritv when comnared to the stylistically
un-to-date and ohviously huilt-for-show nlaces such as the Roherts’ House,
the Ascension Church Pectory. the 'oly Cross - Allender House, and the

Court House and Ascension Church themselves.

The buildina staved in the Roberts familv until July 1, 19n5,
when heirs sold the place to the Realty Comnany of MYestminster for $5,7nn.nn
(1712/41). The comnany then sold to William E. Dixon on March 12, 1923
(142/34) and to Harry !!. Schaeffer and J. B. Mvers on February 2¢, 1024
(143/275); their heirs sold the building, described as 34 Court Place,
to John Wood on July 1, 1053 (222/71) John Yood's widow, who has married
Dr. N. Floyd Adams, still owns the house. Mrs. Adams and her husbands
have made some alterations to the nlace, remodeling the cellar into offices
(occupied by the Carroll County Branch of the Sunpaners) and using the
secondary (southern) door and area for offices for their various nrofessions.
(Poberts added the steeply-pitched, gahble roof section on the northern side
of the building as a ballroom; the section a variety of owners and uses
since the proverty was divided into four sections - this being Section #1
on a nlat made in 1923. The former ballroom, now lawyers' offices, has been
owned by the Heltihridle and Hoff families since 1925; present owner took
title on July 16, 1979 in Deed 472/77).
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